From: Tim Screen

Sent: 23 November 2021 12:02

To: Rebekah Morgan

Subject: 21/03343/F - Land Adj To Promised Land Farm, Wendlebury Road, Chesterton

Hi Rebekah
Further to consideration of the planning application my response as follows.

PROPOSED SURFACING & LANDSCAPE PLAN

A substantial amount of native structural vegetation has been removed from the frontage of
Wendlebury Road for the benefit of highway vis play, roundabout and road realignment and
widening. This has exposed the site where visual receptors experience harmful construction impacts,
operational and physical impacts of large car park and buildings where once there was an attractive
country lane. The proposed Fagus sylvatica hedge is too formal and does not have the species (flora
and fauna) diversity and visual richness of a native mixed hedgerow, which is required here - not
forgetting an improved BREEAM score for the overall development. The mixed native hedgerow will
require a 1 m wide a wildflower verges on both north and south sides; against the pedestrian route
and the car park to allow for the growth of the hedgerow. The regimented row of trees is too formal
and irregular spaced native trees in groups are required. The hedgerow should be implemented at
the earliest opportunity during the current planting season with appropriate landscape maintenance
to aid its establishment and facilitate growth, whilst site clearance and construction proceeds. This
will provide some visual benefit, but also reassurances that the construction/operational and visual
impacts are being addressed at the earliest opportunity.

The potential ‘heat island’ effect and the harmful visual impact of such a large car park must be
addressed for the benefit of onsite users. Additional, climate enhancing, trees should be planted in
the car park where space, services and parking bay numbers allow. Is has been established that
groups of trees sharing the same larger volume tree pit establish and perform better than single
trees in isolated tree pits. | would prefer to see larger tree’ed areas protected by knee rail and
understory planting. All trees are to be supplied, handling, planted and established in accordance
with the current British Standard BS 8545: 2014 The Pyrus calleryana ‘Chanticleer’ are generally
ubiquitous; they are prone to ugly, wound healing deformations to the main stem. Therefore replace
this cultivar with Ginko biloba trees with the more attractive bark. Tree pit details are going to be
necessary. Root barriers should be considered and their positions indicated on the landscape
proposals.

Proposed Tree Strategy

The proposed trees for open space and street should be appropriate in terms of ‘Right Tree
Right Place’ and | therefore recommend that the landscape consultant to consider TDAG's
tree species selection for green infrastructure at the earliest opportunity. Are revised layout
should accommodate more street trees to be adopted and maintained by OCC.
https://www.tdag.org.uk/species-selection-for-green-infrastructure.html

Planting — general

The planting distances are incorrect and planting density should be increased for most species. Good
ground coverage is required after 2-3 growing seasons. For example the Potentilla fruticosa
‘Abbotswood’ is proposed to be planted a t 0.71 m apart which is far too open. | recommend 3 P.f
‘Abottswood’ plants per sq. m to achieve the desired effect. All plant desities should be looked at
again and the nos/sq. m rule imposed.



https://www.tdag.org.uk/species-selection-for-green-infrastructure.html

There is no instruction to plant in species groups or drifts of 3, 5 or 7. This appears to be left to the
landscape contractor during site operations. There is even no instruction to ensure the species are
not planted too close to the edge of borders. This may happen, whereas species grow over the path
they will be unsympathetically pruned.

Plant bed C border between the car park the dome is too narrow for effective establishment of plant
species, and will be overshadowed by the dome. There will be insufficient topsoil and drainage
because the concrete haunching to retain the edge of the paving and playing surface will be very
substantial. Delete this border and replace with free-draining gravel surface. The dome and the
adjoining car park are visually onerous and tree planting in the car parking is appropriate to visually
mitigate these elements.

The maintenance proposals should be clarified with current British Standards — refer enclosed crib
sheet.

Landscape Management

The Landscape Management notes on the drawing are limited in their explanations and must are be
confused with the more detailed LEMP. These notes should therefore be deleted off the drawing.
Shrubs should be pruned at the correct times to enhance flowering and the production of fruits for
visual appeal an food source for birds. For the proposed trees there should be inspections, hand
weeding, mulching, stake and tie adjustment, formative pruning and ground moisture monitoring
and watering at appropriate times, all in accordance with BS 8545. It should also mention that dead,
dying and diseased trees are to be replaced.

Revised landscape proposals are required along with tree pit details/specifications.

Best regards
Tim

Tim Screen CMLI
Landscape Architect
Environmental Services
Environment & Place
Cherwell District Council



LANDSCAPING NOTES — General Guidance

All soft landscaping should be carried out by specialist landscape sub-contractor who is a member of
the British Association of Landscape Industries (BALI).

1.

10.

11.

Existing trees on or adjacent to site are to be retained shall be protected in accordance with
BS 5837:2012 Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction. Recommendations
from commencement to completion of all works on site.

All excavated areas to be free draining and backfilled with imported subsoil to BS 8601:2013
Specification for subsoil and requirements for use (imported subsoil to be laid on site’s
existing subsoil profiles) and overlaid with topsoil to BS 3882:2015 Specification for topsoil
BS 3882 — General purpose grade. All topsoiled areas to be clear of rocks and rubble larger
than 50mm diameter and any other debris that may interfere with the establishment of
plants. Shrub areas to have a minimum depth of 450 mm topsoil. Grassed area to have a
minimum depth of 150mm. Tree pit soil depth/volume in accordance with BS 8545:2014
Trees: from nursery to independence in the landscape. Recommendations.

All plants are to be supplied in accordance with Horticultural Trade Association’s National
Plant Specification and from a HTA certified nursery. Delivery and backfilling of all plant
material to be in accordance with BS4428/JCLI/CPSE Code of Practice for ‘Handling and
Establishing Landscape Plants, Parts I, Il and lI.

All specimen and ground cover shrubs to be planted in accordance with BS 3936: -
Specification for Nursery Stock. Part 1 Trees and shrubs (1992) and Part 10 Ground cover

plants (1989)

All trees to be supplied, planted, mulched, and maintained (and formatively pruned) in
accordance with BS8545:2014 Trees: from nursery to independence in the landscape -
Recommendations. The soil around planted trees to be monitored and watered in
accordance with BS8545 11.3 and G.2 Irrigation

Plants shall be planted in random fashion avoiding informal formal regimented lines at
densities indicated in the schedule (except for specimens and formal hedges which are to be
planted in positions and spacings shown on the drawing and schedule).

Native shrubs are to be planted in their species groups of 7,9 and 15.

Native hedges to be planted in accordance with the positions and spacings shown on the
drawing and schedule.

All plants shall be watered to field capacity immediately after planting and mulched with
75mm depth of medium grade crushed mulch.

All trees to be double staked with cross bar and tied, using 1.5 m long, 75 mm diameter
rounded tree stakes 75mm brace, rubber tie and spacer block. Stakes not to extend more
than 650mm above ground level.

Root barriers (ReRoot 1000 or equivalent) to be included adjacent to buildings, paved
surfaces, and services, where necessary.



12. Planting shall be carried out during the period of 1 November to 31 March when the ground
is not frozen, or waterlogged. If native planting is required outside this period agreement
shall be sought and all bare root plants shall be substituted with container grown stock.

13. All planting and grass establishment / maintenance operations to be in accordance with BS
4428:1989 Code of practice for general landscape operations (excluding hard surfaces). Trees
are to be established / maintained in accordance with BS8545.

14. Wate to field capacity during drought conditions.
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